
JOINT REVIEW BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

THE RAND ROAD REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
TIF DISTRICT 

 
Thursday, November 30, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. - AMENDED 

Village of Deer Park Vehe Barn 
23570 W. Cuba Road 
Deer Park, IL 60010 

 
 

I. Call to Order of the Joint Review Board and Roll Call of Members Present 
Village of Deer Park 
Ela Township 
Lake Zurich Rural Fire Protection District 
Long Grove Fire Protection District 
Barrington Public Library District 
Lake Zurich Community Unit School District 95 
College of Lake County District 532 
County of Lake 
 

II. Appoint a Public Member 
 
III. Appoint a Chairperson of the Joint Review Board 

 
IV. Public Comment 

 
V. Approval and Release of Joint Review Board Meeting Minutes from 

   January 26, 2023. 
 

VI. Review TIF Financial Reports  
 

VII. Joint Review Board Discussion 
 
VIII. Adjournment  

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 1 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 2 of 117



JOINT REVIEW BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Thursday, January 26, 2023, at 10:00 A.M. 
Village of Deer Park Vehe Barn 

23570 W. Cuba Road 
Deer Park, IL 60010 

 
I. Call to Order of the Joint Review Board and Roll Call of Members Present at 

10:00am.  Roll call Village of Deer Park - President Greg Rusteberg, County of Lake – 
Marah Altenberg, Long Grove Fire Protection District - Fire Chief Segalla, Lake Zurich 
Community School District 95 – Dean Romano, Lake Zurich Rural Fire Protection 
District – Tom Johnson.  Also in attendance: Village Administrator Beth McAndrews, 
Village Treasurer Roscoe, Village Attorney Michael Smoron and Village Clerk Kelly. 
Barrington Library, Ela Township, College of Lake and Lake County Forrest Preserve 
were not in attendance. 
 

II. Appoint a Public Member – Fire Chief Segalla motioned and Dean Romano seconded 
to appoint Alan Czarnik as Public Member.  On Roll Call: Ayes: 4 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0 

 
III. Appoint a Chairperson of the Joint Review Board – Marah Altenberg motioned and 

Dean Romano seconded to appoint Greg Rusteberg as Joint Review Board Chairperson. 
On Roll call: Ayes: 5 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0 

 
IV. Public Comment – No Comments 
 
V. Review of TIF Financial Reports 

Village Treasurer Roscoe welcomed all who were able to join us for this meeting.  This 
JRB meeting is a formality for Fiscal Year End 2022.  She stated there is a lot of zeros 
as the TIF has had no funds this past fiscal year.  Looking forward to Fiscal Year 2023.  
Discussion of the Intergovernmental agreements in the report.  These agreements are 
separate from the TIF increment that will be received and have been in place for 
sanitary sewer recapture.  
 

VI. Joint Review Board Discussion   
No additional discussion 

 
VII. Adjournment of Joint Review Board Meeting 

Dean Romano motioned and Marah Altenberg seconded to adjourn the Joint Review 
Board Meeting at 10:08am.  
On Voice Call: Ayes: 5 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0  
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________________   ____________________________ 
Kimberly Kelly      Greg Rusteberg 
Village Clerk       Joint Review Board Chair 

 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 3 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 4 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 5 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 6 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 7 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 8 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 9 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 10 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 11 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 12 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 13 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 14 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 15 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 16 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 17 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 18 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 19 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 20 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 21 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 22 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 23 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 24 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 25 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 26 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 27 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 28 of 117



Attachment A-1

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 29 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 30 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 31 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 32 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 33 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 34 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 35 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 36 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 37 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 38 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 39 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 40 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 41 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 42 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 43 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 44 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 45 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 46 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 47 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 48 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 49 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 50 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 51 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 52 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 53 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 54 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 55 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 56 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 57 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 58 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 59 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 60 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 61 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 62 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 63 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 64 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 65 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 66 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 67 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 68 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 69 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 70 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 71 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 72 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 73 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 74 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 75 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 76 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 77 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 78 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 79 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 80 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 81 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 82 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 83 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 84 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 85 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 86 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 87 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 88 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 89 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 90 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 91 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 92 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 93 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 94 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 95 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 96 of 117



3

ORDINANCE NO. 2022- 22

An Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Financingfor the
Amended Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area Encompassing the Additional Area

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/ 11- 

74. 4- 1, et sec ., as amended ( the " Act"), on November 18, 2021, the President and Board of

Trustees ( the " Corporate Authorities") of the Village of Deer Park, Lake and Cook Counties, 

Illinois (the " Village"), adopted Ordinance No. 2021- 31, entitled An Ordinance Approving the Tax

Increment Financing Eligibility Study and Redevelopment Plan and Project for the Rand Road
Redevelopment Project Area, which approved a " redevelopment plan" and " redevelopment

project," as those terms are defined in the Act, for the real property legally and commonly
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and generally depicted on a
boundary map attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B ( the " Redevelopment Project
Area"); and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2021, the Corporate Authorities adopted Ordinance No. 

2021- 32, entitled An Ordinance Designating the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area, 
pursuant to which the " Area", as defined therein, was designated as a " redevelopment project

area," as that term is defined in the Act (the " Redevelopment Project Area"); and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2022, the Corporate Authorities adopted Ordinance No. 2022- 

20, entitled An Ordinance Approving the Amended Tax Increment Financing Eligibility Study and
Redevelopment Plan and Project for the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area; and

WHEREAS, on Thursday, October 20, 2022, the Corporate Authorities adopted Ordinance
No. 2022- 21, entitled An Ordinance Designating Additional Area as a Redevelopment Project
Area and Incorporating Same in the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area, to which the
Additional Area was designated a " redevelopment project area" in conjunction with the

Redevelopment Project Area; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities desire and find it necessary to adopt tax increment
financing, as such term is used in the Act, for the Additional Area, legally and commonly described
in Exhibits C and D, having been designated as a " redevelopment project area," and that it is in

the Village' s best interests to do so; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of such tax increment financing for the
Additional Area, in conjunction with the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area, have been

fulfilled. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF DEER PARK, LAKE AND COOK COUNTIES, 

ILLINOIS as follows: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals as contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are
true and correct and are hereby incorporated in this Ordinance as if set out in full by this reference. 

SECTION 2. Pursuant to the Act, tax increment financing is hereby authorized and
adopted with respect to the Amended Tax Increment Financing Eligibility Study, Redevelopment

Adopting Tax Increment Financing Amended Rand Road Development Area, Page I

Attachment A-2

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 97 of 117



t

Plan and Project for the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area, approved and adopted by the
Corporate Authorities pursuant to Ordinance No. 2022- 20, and the Additional Area as a

redevelopment project area, which was designated by the Corporate Authorities pursuant to
Ordinance No. 2022- 21, in conjunction with the Redevelopment Project Area. The Redevelopment

Project Area is hereby amended to add, include and encompass the Additional Area ( the " Amended
Redevelopment Project Area"). A legal description of the Amended Rand Road Redevelopment

Project Area, including the Additional Area, is set forth in Exhibit D and depicted in Exhibit E. 

SECTION 3. Subject to Section 8 herein regarding the initial assessed valuation of the
Additional Area, after the total equalized assessed valuation of taxable real property in the
Amended Redevelopment Project Area exceeds the total initial equalized assessed value of all

taxable real property in the Amended Redevelopment Project Area, the ad valorem taxes, if any, 
arising from the levies upon real property in the Amended Redevelopment Project Area by taxing
districts and the rates determined in the manner provided in Section 11- 74. 4- 9( b) of the Act

beginning with the passage of Ordinance No. 2021- 33 and continuing each year after the effective
date of this Ordinance, until the Amended Redevelopment Project Area costs and obligations

issued in respect thereto have been paid, shall be divided as follows: 

a. That portion of taxes levied upon each taxable lot, block, tract or parcel of real

property which is attributable to the lower of the existing equalized assessed value
or the initial equalized assessed value of each such taxable lot, block, tract, or parcel

of real property in the Amended Redevelopment Project Area, including the
Additional Area, shall be allocated to and when collected shall be paid by the
County Collector to the respective affected taxing districts in the manner required
by law in the absence of the adoption of tax increment financing. 

b. That portion, if any, of such taxes which is attributable to the increase in the current
equalized assessed valuation of each lot, block, tract or parcel of real property in
the Amended Redevelopment Project Area, including the Additional Area, over and
above the initial equalized assessed value of each property in the Amended
Redevelopment Project Area shall be allocated to and when collected shall be paid

to the Village Treasurer who shall deposit said funds in a special fund called the

Tax Increment Financing Fund for the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area" 
of the Village for the purpose of paying the Redevelopment Project Area costs and
obligations incurred in the payment thereof, pursuant to such appropriations which

may be subsequently made. 

SECTION 4. The provisions and sections of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be

separable, and the invalidity of any portion of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the
remainder. 

SECTION 5. All ordinances, resolutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict

herewith, are to the extent of such conflict hereby superseded. 

SECTION 6. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in

pamphlet form as provided by the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended. The Village Clerk is hereby
directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

Adopting Tax Increment Financing Amended Rand Road Development Area, Page 2

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 98 of 117



3

SECTION 7. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage

and approval, and publication as required by law. 

SECTION 8. The Lake County Clerk shall utilize 2022 for determining the total initial
equalized assessed value of the Additional Area portion of the Amended Redevelopment Project

Area consistent with subsection ( a) of Section 11- 74. 4- 9 of the Act. 

Voting A e:  . – a\ 

Voting Nay: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

AP ROVED: 

I11111111f 1111114f il

PG 9po'•.C 

Village President Greg Rusteberg

4ANOIS AST: 

Village Cler Kimberly Kelly

Passed:— 

Approved: 

Published: 2n2 Z- 

Adopting Tax Increment Financing Amended Rand Road Development Area, Page 3

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 99 of 117



EXHIBIT A

Legal and Common Description of the

Existing Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area

The approximate boundary by street location ofthe Redevelopment Project Area is as follows: 
The Area includes portions of Rand Road or State Route 12, portions of Lake Cook Road, part of

Field Parkway, as well as part of Deer Park Boulevard, a portion of Plum Grove Road and areas
generally located south of Rand Road ( or State Route 12), east of North Deer Park Boulevard, and
north and northwesterly of East Lake Cook Road in the Village of Deer Park and is commonly
known as the proposed Rand Road Redevelopment TIF District, Deer Park, Illinois. 

Common Addresses and PINS

The " Palazzo" property located at 20450 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 022; 

The " Richter" property located at 20370 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 015; 

The " Giannini" properties located at 20350 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 016, 

20346 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 017, 20338 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 018; 

The " DeFranco" property located at 20330 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 019; 

The " Cars Collision" property located at 20324 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 020; 

The " Behrens" property located at 20308 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 021; 

The " Trust 2384" property located at 20284 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 022; 

The " Richter" property located at 20278 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 023; 

The " 20270 Rand Road LLC" property located at 20270 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 024; 

The " Berggren Realty" properties located at 20246 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 402- 013, 

20258 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 402- 003; 

The " True North Energy" property located at 20190 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 304- 001; 

The " Schorvitz" property located at 20168 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 029; 

The " Marquez" properties located at 20152 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 030, 

20140 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 031; 

The `Behrens" property located at 20136 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 032; 

The " 20066 Rand LLC" property located at 20066 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 033; 

The " Continental" properties located at 20285 Deer Park Boulevard, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 017, 

and 20126 N. Plum Grove Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 021; and

The " White Oak Funding" properties located at 20155 N. Deer Park Boulevard, assigned PINS 14- 
34- 404- 018 and 14- 34- 404- 019 and at 20035 N. Plum Grove Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 406- 004. 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 100 of 117



Legal Description

THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 34 AND THE WEST HALF OF SECTION

35 IN TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF RAND
ROAD ( AKA U. S. RTE 12) WITH THE EAST AND WEST CENTERLINE OF SAID SECTION
34, SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF
SECTION; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD, 1115. 3 8 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE ( SAID LINE INTERSECTING

THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION
34 AT A POINT 1596. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 34) TO A
POINT ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD AND
BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF PATTERSON SUBDIVISION
AS RECORDED SEPTEMBER 26, 1962 AS DOCUMENT NO. 1163363 IN BOOK 38 OF
PLATS, PAGE 60; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF PATTERSON

SUBDIVISION, EXTENDED NORTHEASTERLY, TO A POINT ON THE NORTHEASTERLY
RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF

RAND ROAD TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHEASTERLY
EXTENSION OF A SOUTHWESTERLY - NORTHEASTERLY LINE, SAID

SOUTHWESTERLY -NORTHEASTERLY LINE BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, THE
SOUTHWESTERLY END OF SAID LINE BEING 579. 58 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 35 AND THE NORTHEASTERLY END OF SAID LINE BEING 364. 5 FEET
NORTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER ALONG
SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE
PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 3 5; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 35 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID SECTION 34 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY
EXTENSION OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF PLUM GROVE ROAD; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION AND THE WESTERLY
RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF PLUM GROVE ROAD TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT
11 IN THE AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION
AS RECORDED FEBRUARY 6, 2015 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 7168703: 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER THEREOF; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 1 I TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN THE AFORESAID PATTERSON SUBDIVISION, SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 101 of 117



LOT 9 IN SAID AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST
RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 9 TO A POINT ON THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 34; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 111. 07 FEET
OF SAID LOT 9; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 111. 07 FEET OF LOT 9 TO
A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 10 IN SAID
AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT
10 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 IN SAID AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF
MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER
THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH
LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 34; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
DEER PARK BOULEVARD; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF DEER
PARK BOULEVARD AND THE NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT
ON THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT
ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 34; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT- 
OF- WAY LINE OF RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHEASTERLY
EXTENSION OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PALAZZO OF DEER PARK
SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED JULY 12, 2016 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 7308241; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PALAZZO OF DEER PARK SUBDIVISION TO A POINT
ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 9 IN THE AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA
DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 9 TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE
OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34; 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 102 of 117



THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO AFORESAID POINT 1596. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED LINE TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING. 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 103 of 117



EXHIBIT B

Boundary Map of the Existing Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area

h

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 104 of 117



EXHIBIT C

Legal Description and Common Description of the Additional Area

The " Gerlach" property located at 20420 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34-400- 009, legally
described as follows: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH WEST 1/ 4 OF THE SOUTH EAST 1/ 4 OF SECTION 34, 

TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT A POINT OF INTERSECTION OF

CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD WITH EAST AND WEST 1/ 4 LINE OF SAID SECTION 34, 

SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID

SECTION; THENCE SOUTH EASTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD, 

465. 38 FEET TO PLACE OF BEGINNING AND THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF

PREMISES INTENDED TO BE DESCRIBED; THENCE SOUTH EASTERLY ALONG THE

CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD, 100 FEET; THENCE SOUTH WESTERLY IN A STRAIGHT

LINE, 854. 90 FEET TO A POINT THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE

AND 671. 60 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH 1/ 4 LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; 

THENCE WEST 120. 58 FEET ON A LINE THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF AND

PARALLEL TO SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION, SAID LINE BEING SOUTH LINE OF A

CERTAIN 17.66 ACRES BOUNDED ON THE NORTH BY THE CENTER LINE OF RAND

ROAD, ON THE WEST BY A LINE 452. 10 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH LINE

OF SAID SECTION AND ON THE EAST BY THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/ 2 OF THE

SOUTH EAST 1/ 4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE NORTH EASTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE

921. 74 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS; and

The " Tsagalis" properties located at 20416 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 010, 20412 Rand

Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 011, legally described as follows: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/ 4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/ 4 OF SECTION 34, 

TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE CENTER LINE OF RAND

ROAD WITH THE EAST AND WEST QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; ( SAID POINT

OF INTERSECTION BEING 679.93 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION); 

THENCE SOUTHEASTELRY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD, 565. 38 FEET

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF PREMISES

INTENDED TO BE DESCRIBED; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE CENTER

LINE OF SAID ROAD, 225 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE

704. 54 FEET TO A POINT THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE AND

942. 90 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; 

THENCE WEST 271. 30 FEET ON A LINE THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF AND

PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION ( SAID LINE BEING THE SOUTH

LINE OF A CERTAIN 17. 66 ACRES BOUNDED ON THE NORTH BY THE CENTER LINE

OF RAND ROAD, ON THE WEST BY A LINE 452. 10 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND

SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION AND ON THE EAST BY THE EAST LINE OF

THE WEST 1/ 2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/ 4 OF SAID SECTION); THENCE

NORTHEASTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE 854.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF AND ADJOINING

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 105 of 117



THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD IN LAKE

COUNTY, ILLINOIS; and

The ` Bladow" property located at 20406 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 012, legally
described as follows: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND

THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 43

NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE 3RD P. M., DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING

AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD WITH THE

EAST AND WEST QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; ( SAID POINT OF

INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION); 

THENCE SOUTHEASTELRY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD, 790.38 FEET

TO A PLACE OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG CENTER LINE OF

SAID ROAD, 100 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE 637.71 FEET

TO A POINT THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE AND 1063. 50 FEET

EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; THENCE

WEST 120. 59 FEET ON A LINE THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL TO

THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION, ( SAID LINE BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF A

CERTAIN 17. 66 ACRES BOUNDED ON THE NORTH BY THE CENTER LINE OF RAND

ROAD, ON THE WEST BY A LINE, 452. 10 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH

QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION AND ON THE EAST BY THE EAST LINE OF THE

WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION); THENCE

NORTHEASTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE 704. 54 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF AND ADJOINING

THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD IN LAKE

COUNTY, ILLINOIS; and

The " Garber" properties located at 20388 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 013, 20378 Rand

Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 014, legally described as follows: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH WEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTH EAST ONE- 

QUARTER AND THE EAST ONE-HALF OF THE SOUTH EAST ONE- QUARTER OF

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF

INTERSECTION OF THE CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD WITH THE EAST AND WEST

QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34, SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93

FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG

THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD 1040. 38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD 75 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE 514.73 FEET TO A POINT IN THE

WEST LINE OF EAST ONE- HALF OF THE SOUTH EAST ONE- QUARTER OF SAID

SECTION 34, THAT IN 1596. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE EAST ONE- HALF OF THE SOUTH

EAST ONE- QUARTER OF SAID SECTION, 23 FEET, THENCE WEST 73. 95 FEET ON A

LINE THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

SECTION, SAID LINE BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF A CERTAIN 17. 66 ACRES BOUNDED

ON THE NORTH BY THE CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD ON THE WEST BY A LINE

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 106 of 117



452. 10 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH ONE- QUARTER LINE OF SAID

SECTION; AND ON THE EAST BY THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST ONE- HALF OF THE

SOUTH EAST ONE- QUARTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY IN A

STRAIGHT LINE 537.47 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN LAKE COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS. 

AND

THAT PART OF THE NORTH WEST ONE- QUARTER OF THE SOUTH EAST ONE- 

QUARTER AND THE EAST ONE-HALF OF THE SOUTH EAST ONE-QUARTER OF

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF

INTERSECTION OF THE CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD WITH THE EAST AND WEST

QUARTER LINE OF SECTION 34, SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93 FEET

EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE

CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD 890. 38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD 150 FEET; THENCE

SOUTHWESTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE, 537. 47 FEET TO A POINT, THAT IS 1619. 96

FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE AND 1244. 38 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND

SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION 34; THENCE WEST 180. 88 FEET ON A LINE, 

THAT IS 1619. 96 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

SECTION; SAID LINE BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF A CERTAIN 17. 66 ACRES BOUNDED

ON THE NORTH BY THE CENTER LINE OF RAND ROAD, ON THE WEST BY A LINE

452. 10 FEET EAST OF THE NORTH AND SOUTH QUARTER LINE OF SAID SECTION

AND ON THE EAST BY THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST ONE- HALF OF THE SOUTH EAST

ONE- QUARTER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE

637. 71 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 107 of 117



EXHIBIT D

Boundary Map of the Additional Area

o I ` as l 1

1
I

WZ

I

a  
r

41

r

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 108 of 117



EXHIBIT E

Legal Description and Common Description of the

Amended Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area Including the Additional Area

Common Addresses and PINs

The " Palazzo" property located at 20450 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 022; 

The " Richter" property located at 20370 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 015; 

The " Giannini" properties located at 20350 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 016, 

20346 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 017, 20338 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 018; 

The " DeFranco" property located at 20330 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 019; 

The " Cars Collision" property located at 20324 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 020; 

The " Behrens" property located at 20308 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 021; 

The " Trust 2384" property located at 20284 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 022; 

The " Richter" property located at 20278 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 023; 

The " 20270 Rand Road LLC" property located at 20270 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 024; 

The " Berggren Realty" properties located at 20246 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 402- 013, 

20258 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 402- 003; 

The " True North Energy" property located at 20190 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 304- 001; 

The " Schorvitz" property located at 20168 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 029; 

The " Marquez" properties located at 20152 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 030, 

20140 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 031; 

The " Behrens" property located at 20136 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 032; 

The " 20066 Rand LLC" property located at 20066 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 35- 300- 033; 

The " Continental" properties located at 20285 Deer Park Boulevard, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 017, 

and 20126 N. Plum Grove Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 404- 021; 

The " White Oak Funding" properties located at 20155 N. Deer Park Boulevard, assigned PINs 14- 
34- 404- 018 and 14- 34- 404- 019 and at 20035 N. Plum Grove Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 406- 004; 

The " Gerlach" property located at 20420 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 009; 

The " Tsagalis" properties located at 20416 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 010, 20412 Rand

Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 011; 

The " Bladow" property located at 20406 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 012; and

The " Garber" properties located at 20388 Rand Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 013, 20378 Rand

Road, assigned PIN 14- 34- 400- 014. 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 109 of 117



Leval Description

THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 34 AND THE WEST HALF OF SECTION

35 IN TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF RAND
ROAD ( AKA U. S. RTE 12) WITH THE EAST AND WEST CENTERLINE OF SAID SECTION
34, SAID POINT OF INTERSECTION BEING 679. 93 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF
SECTION; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD, 1115. 38

FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE ( SAID LINE INTERSECTING
THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 34 AT A POINT 1596. 96 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION
34) TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND
ROAD AND BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF PATTERSON SUBDIVSION

AS RECORDED SEPTEMBER 26, 1962 AS DOCUMENT NO. 1163363 IN BOOK 38 OF
PLATS, PAGE 60; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF PATTERSON

SUBDIVISION, EXTENDED NORTHEASTERLY, TO A POINT ON THE

NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHEASTERLY
EXTENSION OF A SOUTHWESTERLY - NORTHEASTERLY LINE, SAID

SOUTHWESTERLY - NORTHEASTERLY LINE BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, THE
SOUTHWESTERLY END OF SAID LINE BEING 579. 58 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 35 AND THE NORTHEASTERLY END OF SAID LINE BEING 364. 5 FEET
NORTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER ALONG

SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE
PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION
35; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 35 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID SECTION 34 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY
EXTENSION OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF- WAY LINE OF PLUM GROVE ROAD; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION AND THE WESTERLY
RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF PLUM GROVE ROAD TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT
11 IN THE AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST

RESUBDIVISION AS RECORDED FEBRUARY 6, 2015 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER

7168703: 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER THEREOF; 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 110 of 117



THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 IN THE AFORESAID PATTERSON SUBDIVISION, SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3 ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE OF
LOT 9 IN SAID AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST
RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 9 TO A POINT ON THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 34; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 111. 07 FEET
OF SAID LOT 9; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 111. 07 FEET OF LOT 9 TO
A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 10 IN SAID
AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT
10 TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 IN SAID AMENDED FINAL PLAT OF
MOTOROLA DEER PARK FIRST RESUBDIVISION; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER
THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH
LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 34; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF
DEER PARK BOULEVARD; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF DEER
PARK BOULEVARD AND THE NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO A POINT
ON THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT
ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 34; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT- 
OF- WAY LINE OF RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHWESTERLY
RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE OF SAID RAND ROAD; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT- OF- WAY LINE
OF RAND ROAD TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 111 of 117



CERTIFICATION

I, KIMBERLY KELLY, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Clerk of the Village
of Deer Park, Lake and Cook Counties, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the

records and minutes and proceedings of the President and Board of Trustees of said Village of

Deer Park. 

I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Deer Park, held on the 20" day of October, 2022, the foregoing Ordinance entitled
An Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Financing for the Amended Rand Road Redevelopment
Area Encompassing the Additional Area, was duly passed by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Deer Park. 

The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 2022-22, including the Ordinance and a cover sheet
thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the Village Hall, commencing
on the 20th day of October, 2022, and will continue for at least 10 days thereafter. Copies of such
Ordinance are also available for public inspection upon request in the office of the Village Clerk. 

I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is
entrusted to me as the Clerk of said Village for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and
keeper of the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my name as Clerk and caused the seal of said
Village to be affixed hereto this 20th day of October, 2022. 

D. Q'''% illage Clerk Kin& ly Kelly
P O R = Village of Deer ParkqT: 9 g

Lake and Cook Counties, Illinois

SEAL) _ A _= 

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 112 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 113 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 114 of 117



ATTACHMENT C

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 115 of 117



JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 116 of 117



ATTACHMENT M Name: Villge of Deer Park

TIF District: Rand Rd Dev Proj

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS

FY2023

A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect in FY 2023, to with the municipality is a part, and an accounting of

any money transferred or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to those intergovernemental 

agreements.  [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (10)]

Name of Agreement Description of Agreement
Amount 

Transferred Out
Amount Received

A Resolution Approving an Amended and Allows for the provision of water supply -$                     -$                         

Restated Interngovernmentla Agreement from the Village of Palatine to certain 

with the Village of Palatine Relative to Water property within the Village of Deer Park

Supply for Certain Property Within the 

Village of Deer Park, July 21, 2022

A Resolution Approving an Intergovern- Allows for the creation of one lot in Deer -$                     -$                         

mental Agreement Between the Village of Park for the Persin Jeweler site and the 

Palatine, 783 Lake Cook Enterprises, LLC, provision of Lake Michigan water and

Persin and Robbin Jewelers Corp and the sanitary sewer service by the Village of 

Village of Deer Park Relative to the Palatine to the site. (Currently undeveloped)

Development an dWater Supply for Certain 

Property Within the Village of Deer Park,

October 20, 2022

Intergovernemtal Agreement with Provides sewage transport and disposal 504,391.95$        -$                         

the Village of Deer Park and in the service are of the Village of Deer Park

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of by MWRDGC.  The Village of Deer Park

Greater Chicago (MWRDGC), remits property owner payments to MWRD.

dated November 5, 1998

amended December 4, 2003

amended October 20, 2022

Intergovernmental Agreement for Contract Lake County Sheriff Police Services in 1,370,697.96$     -$                         

Police Services by and Among the Village Deer Park

of Deer Park, The County of Lake, and the

Lake County Sheriff, October 15, 2020

Intergovernmental Agreement between the Agreement for Ela Township to provide 56,765.95$          -$                         

Village of Deer Park, Illinois, and Ela certain road maintenance, storm water, 

Township, Lake County, Illinois for Certain forestry and other services.

Public Works Services, June 10, 2021

Intergovernmental Agreement between Agreement for Ela Township to provide 159,179.56$        -$                         

the Village of Deer Park, Illinois, and Ela snowplowing services on Village of Deer 

Township, Lake County, Illinois for Snow- Park roadways.

plow and other Services, June 10, 2021

JRB Agenda 11 30 23 Page 117 of 117


	2023-11-30 JRB Meeting Agenda.pdf
	FY2023_VODP_TIF_1_Report_Combined.pdf
	FY2023_VODP_TIF_1_Report.pdf
	ATTACHMENT A-1 - Approving the Amended TIF Eligibility Study and Redevelopmnet Plan for the Rand Road Redevelopment Project Area.pdf
	ATTACHMENT B - CEO Certification.pdf
	ATTACHMENT C - Legal Counsel Opinion 11.7.23.pdf
	ATTACHMENT M - Intergovernmental Agreements.pdf

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



